
RE: Addendum 2 Published 02/21/25 

Questions received after 01/24/25 

 
1. Can you please provide detail on your request for the 10-year detail transaction history. 

Can you provide me with some examples of how you would use this data. History for the 
Utility accounts, should include usage and transaction history. One scenario would be a 
payoff request for a Lien filed to an account. Transaction history has to be included in the 
response to the Title company requesting the payoff amount. For Financials Module: 
General Ledger Posting and Journal Entry History. 
 

2. Could you supply the processing fee statement for the ECH Auto Pay and the customer 
processing fees? No response 
 

3. What software system does the district currently use? Great Plains – ERP and Diamond – 
Utility Billing 
 

4. Can you please list the different modules of this system that are used by the district? Great 
Plains – Account Rollups, Bank Reconciliation, Business Alerts, Direct Deposit, EFT 
Payables, Fixed Assets, General Ledger/Advanced Financial Analysis, GL Transaction 
Matching, Human Resource Management, Landed Cost, Modifier, Multidimensional 
Analysis, Payables Management, Payroll, Purchase Order Processing, Safe Pay, Diamond – 
Cash Receipts Import, Cash Receipts, Collections Management, Utility Billing 
 

5. How many sewer accounts does the district bill? 55,000 
 

6. How many w2s does the district issue? 79 in 2024. 
 

7. How many employees are in an average payroll?  
29 – Weekly, 36 Bi-Weekly 

8. Do we need a wet signature on all submissions? No 
9. Permits are to be integrated with the AR in the RFP, our permits are integrated with the UB 

and the UB sends the necessary information to the AR, are you flexible on the integration 
point? Yes 

10. Are you working with a Consultant on this RFP and if so, what will be their role during the 
evaluation and post award? No, we are not working with a consultant. 

11. Do you have an overall budget you are looking to work within? No budget has been 
approved for the project at this time 

12. How many legal entities are there? One 
 



13. Would you breakdown the type of users for financial solutions that offer named user 
licenses? 

a. full admin 
b. accounting user - AP, AR, Report Creation, etc 
c. Budget manager - inputs their department budget 
d. Budget creator - owner & creator of the overall budget 
e. General user - runs reports, access to dashboards, approvals, etc. 
f. Inventory user 

No response 
 

14. Would you describe the workorder integration with inventory requirements? 
No response 
 

15. How many total employees do you have? We currently have 65 employees. W2 vs.1099? In 
2024, we issued 79 W2s and 25 1099s. Do you propose the new system would handle that 
processing for you? Yes 
 

16. What is your pay frequency? Weekly and Bi-Weekly 
 

17. Are you interested in a native Time & Labor Tracking Module? Yes If so, how many 
employees are hourly? 65 
 

18. Do nonexempt employees get paid bonus commissions that need to be factored into the 
regular rate of pay? No 
 

19. Are you interested in a native Benefits Administration Module? Yes If so, are you in need of 
ACA tracking and filing of the 1094/1095 forms? Yes 
 

20. Please provide the number of users for Utility Billing. 15? 
 

21. You mention 55,000 accounts and that you bill 17,000 accounts monthly. What is the 
number of utility accounts that would access a customer portal? Unknown. The preference 
is for the majority of customers to access a customer portal. 

22. What payment processor does the District use? The District partners with a local bank for 
check processing and outsources electronic payments to FirsTech. 
 

23. Is the District open to considering Paymentus, Invoice Cloud, or Kubra if it is currently using 
a different one? Yes 
 

24. In order for us to provide the most accurate pricing, please provide the District’s current 
vendors for the following: 



a. Financials – Great Plains? Yes 
b. Payments, lockbox, pre-auth FirsTech 
c. Payment processing – Internal/Local Bank 
d. Bill Print & Mail – is the District open to changing providers? Bill print – Internal, Mail 

– QuickSilver. Yes we would consider a change. 
e. Collections Agency - Internal 
f. Central Cashiering 
g. Credit Checks - none 
h. Permitting - Internal 
i. Write-Offs - Internal  
j. Liens – Internal 

 
25.  Please confirm that you have no meters in use since you offer sewer service only. 

We do not use meters to bill for sewer service. We do have customers that have Credit 
Meters on their water service that give us readings so we can give credits. 

 
26. Is there a consultant aiding GPSD?  If so, are they also a member of the evaluation 

committee? No there is not a consultant. 
 

27. Can GPSD confirm that there is an approved budget and provide the approved amounts and 
fiscal years? No budget has been approved for the project at this time. 
 

28. We offer a pricing model where we are in the position to offer attractive pricing 
opportunities for CIS reporting and query users.  How many of the CIS users are hands-on 
users of the CIS solution versus query and reporting users? No response 
 

29. To clarify on the best of breed utility billing solution questions from Addendum 1, will GPSD 
accept a bid for CIS only? (without ERP) No, the District will only consider “best of breed” 
model that meets all requirements.  
 

30. Who is GPSD's current provider(s) for the online portal and payment processing?  Does 
GPSD have a preference on the utility billing provider to integrate to existing vendors or 
replace? The District does not have a current provider for an online portal.  
 

31. Does GPSD have any service orders or mobile field service systems in place today? We 
currently use Lucity for Asset Management used for service orders.  If so, what are the 
vendor and integration expectations?  Or is this something GPSD is looking to replace? 
Possibly. It is to be determined. Is that a system you are looking for the utility billing 
software to integrate with? That’s to be determined right now. It currently does not interact 
with our current system. 
 



32. Does GPSD have an asset management system in place today?  If so, what are the vendor 
and integration expectations?  Or is this something GPSD is looking to replace? See answer 
to Question 31. 
 

33. Is there an IVR system in place today and who is the provider? Yes – FirsTech 
 

34. What are the convenience fees in place today?  Is GPSD looking to stay with this model or 
move to absorbing credit card fees? $1 convenience fee for every $50 payment. 
 

35. Can GPSD provide more information on how water usage is received (format, data 
requirements, etc.) from the local water utility and how/where bills are calculated with that 
information?  We receive text files with readings from three local water utilities. 
Those readings are imported into Diamond to the utility account. Each account has 
service codes with rates that are used to calculate the invoice. 
 

36. Do you have an anticipated start date or go-live date in mind? None at this time 
 

37. Are there any contracting, fiscal year, or conflicting project considerations that might affect 
your timeline? No 
 

38. What payment channels or payment options is your bank currently offering? Credit cards, in 
person at payment locations, automated IVR phone payments. Are we looking at continuing 
with the in-person payment options? We are open to all options. What about convenience 
fees? We are looking at credit card fees being passed onto the customer. Currently, it is 
$1.00 for every $50.00 for online or IVR payments. In-person would be $1.50. Any maximum 
payments? $1,000 per transaction 
 

39. Are you sending out paper bills or having to use a printer in order to send out to billing for 
your services?  We do currently print our bills in-house, but send them out to be mailed. If 
so, who are you currently using for that service? We use QuickSilver for the mailing after we 
print them in-house. If a solution was able to provide a print and mail solution, would that 
be of interest to you? Yes, we would be open to that. 
 

40. Related to payroll, are you all currently filing payment of taxes on your end or by a 3rd party? 
The District handles this internally. 
 

41. Is the board of directors going to be involved in actually of giving permission for the solution 
a proposal for the solution that needs to be given that board. Is a board presentation to be 
made jointly with the vendor or would it be the committee?  The committee would present 
to the board. Who would sign the contract? Our Executive Director, Brian Johnson. 
 



42. Are you going to want the vendors to be onsite for the demonstrations or is it okay if it was 
partly remote or completely remote? Any would be fine. 
 

43. Who will be present during the actual demonstrations? Is it just Adam or the selection 
group? It will be the committee and possibly select users. 
 

44. Are you looking at these demos to be all in one day or potentially to space them out based 
on time and complexity? We will space them out. We won’t have a time limit on how long 
the demos will be. You can have as much time as you need. 
 

45. Will you send us an agenda or protocol for how the demos are supposed to go or are the 
vendors allowed to create that type of structured agenda? If we knew your agenda, we 
could select what we actually want to see. So, you don’t already have a process in place 
that you’re going to want a strict agenda that all vendors have to adhere to? No 
 

46. Are there any budget constraints or higher end dollar amounts that you have to work with as 
far as first year cost of the solution? We cannot answer that right now. 

 
47. To what degree are you wanting to track mileage hours on vehicles? Simple entry into the 

system or sophisticated, integrated solution? No strict requirement at this time. We do get 
mileage from our gas pumps as a text file. Are you just wanting to track mileage or fleet 
management, such as when oil changes need to occur? Right now, we track mileage in 
Lucity for Asset Management for vehicle management. We do track mileage for projects so 
we can charge contractors for our time and equipment. Current mileage tracking is done in 
a separate system. 
 

48. Do you need to track funds at all? You asked to track projects, but want to check on fund 
management. The District uses Enterprise Accounting and does not need fund 
management. 
 

49. Clarify #6 on Addendum 1. Can you provide a final list of those integrations and who those 
vendors are in the next addendum? Are there any vendors not listed there that need to be 
integrated. Is there a file transfer or does there need to be a real-time API in place with any 
of those vendors? GPSD’s utility billing software does not interface with other vendors. All 
interaction is done through flat file imports. 
 

50. Will you accept any further clarifying questions after this addendum or is this the final date? 
We have not set a final date so we are open to questions. 
 



51. Will the vendors invited to this call receive an alert when the addendum is posted or do we 
just have to check the website? If so, what date should we check? Would a week from now 
be enough time? You will have to look at our website mid-week next week. 
 

52. Could you provide details on the existing ERP system currently utilized by the District? See 
Addendum 1 Question #19 
 

53. Are there any third-party solutions being used within the ERP system? Please provide a list, 
if any. No 
 

54. The RFP mentions establishing a turnkey, integrated hardware/software environment. 
Could you share more details about the hardware environment? GPSD staff uses various 
computer models, but all run Microsoft Windows. If offering an on-prem solution, GPSD 
expects vendors to provide all necessary hardware. 
 

55. How many users will be accessing the ERP system? Are the twenty-five concurrent users 
just for Finance? Twenty-five concurrent users total. A general breakdown is as follows: 

a. 3-5 Finance Users 
b. 6-10 Utility Billing Users 
c. 6-10 Purchasing/Requisitioning Users 

 
56. What is the total number of employees (both full-time and part-time) for payroll 

processing? See Question #7 
 

57. Is there an existing solution for permitting in place? If so, could you provide details? 
Permitting is currently done through a Microsoft Access database. 
 

58. We propose to utilize our global resources for requirements such as training and support. 
Please confirm if this is acceptable. This is acceptable. 
 

59. Should the certificates of insurance be submitted along with the proposal? Yes 
 

60. What was the total IT budget for the previous year? No response 
 

61. Are there any plans to extend the proposal submission deadline? Not currently 
 

62. Number of billing cycles per year? Residential accounts are billed quarterly. However, they 
are not all billed at the same time as it depends upon when we receive the readings from 
the water company. They are grouped into routes (based on when the water company reads 
the meter) and we batch them together for the billing. The billing batches are roughly 5,000 
accounts at a time, but we could process billing batches a few different days each week. 



Commercial accounts are billed monthly. They follow a similar billing cycle as the 
residential as they are also based on water usage. Different batches are billed 
approximately the same time each month, but we have multiple batches each month. We 
also have some accounts that get billed yearly as their usage is so low that it is not cost 
effective for us to bill them quarterly. 
 


